
 

Spelthorne Borough Council, Council Offices, Knowle Green 
 
Staines-upon-Thames TW18 1XB 
 
www.spelthorne.gov.uk customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk Telephone 01784 451499 
 

 
 
 
 

13 July 2016 
 
 Please reply to:  

Contact: Greg Halliwell 
Direct line: 01784 446267 
E-mail: g.halliwell@spelthorne.gov.uk 
  
  

 
 
To the Councillors of Spelthorne Borough Council 
 
I hereby summon you to attend a meeting of the Council to be held in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-upon-Thames on Thursday, 21 
July 2016 commencing at 7.30 pm for the transaction of the following business.  
 
 
 

 
 
Roberto Tambini 
Chief Executive 
 
 
Councillors are encouraged to wear their badge of past office at the Council meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
For those Councillors wishing to participate, prayers will be said in the Leader’s 
room starting at 7pm. 
 

Public Agenda

http://www.spelthorne.gov.uk/
mailto:customer.services@spelthorne.gov.uk


 
 

 

 

 AGENDA  

Description Page nos. 

1.   Apologies for absence  

 To receive any apologies for non-attendance. 
  

 

2.   Minutes  

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the Annual Council 
meeting held on 19 May 2016. 
  

7 - 16 

3.   Disclosures of Interest  

 To receive any disclosures of interest from Councillors in accordance 
with the Council’s Code of Conduct for members. 
  

 

4.   Announcements from the Mayor  

 To receive any announcements from the Mayor. 
  

 

5.   Announcements from the Leader  

 To receive any announcements from the Leader. 
  

 

6.   Announcements from the Chief Executive  

 To receive any announcements from the Chief Executive. 
  

 

7.   Questions from members of the public  

 The Leader, or their nominee, to answer any questions raised by 
members of the public in accordance with Standing Order 14. 
 
We have received the following question from Mr. Andrew McLuskey: 
 
“Given Spelthorne’s proximity to London, and bearing in mind the recent 
report to the effect that the capital’s air pollution disproportionately 
affects schools with a significant number of pupils from deprived 
backgrounds, can the Leader indicate how far that situation is replicated 
here?” 
  

 

8.   Petitions  

 To receive any petitions from members of the public. 
  

 

9.   Members' Allowances Scheme 2016-17  

 To consider the recommendations of the Independent Remuneration 
Panel on the Members’ Allowances Scheme 2016-17. 
  

17 - 38 



 
 

 

10.   Recommendations of the Cabinet  

 To consider the recommendations of the Cabinet from its meeting on 20 
July 2016. 
  

To Follow 

11.   Reports from the Leader of the Council  

a)   Cabinet - 22 June 2016  

 To receive the report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the 
Cabinet at its meeting held on 22 June 2016. 
  

39 - 40 

b)   Cabinet - 20 July 2016  

 To receive the report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the 
Cabinet at its meeting on 20 July 2016. 
  

To Follow 

12.   Report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee on the 
work of her Committee. 
  

41 - 42 

13.   Report from the Chairman of the Licensing Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Licensing Committee on 
the work of his Committee. 
  

43 - 44 

14.   Report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee on the work of his Committee. 
  

To Follow 

15.   Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee  

 To receive the report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee on 
the work of his Committee. 
  

45 - 46 

16.   Motions  

 Under Standing Order 17, the Council has received Notice of the 
following Motions: 
 

1. “The Green Belt in Spelthorne is sacrosanct. This Council 
confirms that there is NO INTENTION whatsoever to allow 
development of the Green Belt.” 
 
Proposed by Cllr. Quentin Edgington 
Seconded by Cllr. Penny Forbes-Forsyth 
 
 

2. “We ask that the Council and the Councillors support the 
campaign to put Spelthorne train stations into Zone 6.” 
 
Proposed by Cllr. Olivia Rybinski 

 



 
 

 

Seconded by Cllr. Sabine Capes 
  

17.   Questions on Ward Issues  

 The Leader, or their nominee, to answer questions from Councillors on 
issues in their Ward, in accordance with Standing Order 15. 
  

 

18.   General questions  

 The Leader, or their nominee, to answer questions from Councillors on 
matters affecting the Borough, in accordance with Standing Order 15. 
 
The following questions have been received from Cllr. Quentin 
Edgington: 
 

1. “Why are there large areas of grass in our parks which are not 
being cut? Not only does it make the park look unsightly and 
untidy but it also makes it very difficult for dog owners to clear up 
dog excrement.”  
 

2. “Can the Leader please provide details of Mayoral Civic events 
which are suitable for all Spelthorne Councillors to attend? As 
well as current events, can details be provided of all events which 
are in the Mayoral Diary so far up to and including the end of the 
Mayoral year?”  

 
3. “What committees have been allocated for Independent 

Councillor Penny Forbes-Forsyth to serve on?”  
 

4. “Following the result of the Referendum how is the best way for 
the Borough of Spelthorne to successfully and meaningfully 
engage with the 22,474 people who wished to remain in the EU 
and the 16,065 who did not vote?” 
 
 
 

The following question has been received from Cllr. Bernie Spoor: 
 

1. “The Council has private landlords on its books that agree to take 
in those that are homeless for whatever reason. The homeless 
include the vulnerable often with learning difficulties, the 
disadvantaged often single parents with children and the 
unfortunates in society.  The property is often on the baseline of 
letting potential and making it available to the council provides an 
income stream without tenant pressure. 
If the Council has contracted the landlord to provide a home that 
surely is safe, secure and habitable for the residing tenants and 
these basic amenities are not met where does the responsibility 
lie to correct them?  Ultimately, they fund the payments to the 
landlord so when things go wrong where does the Duty of Care 
fall?” 

 

 



 
 

 

 
 

  

19.   Appointment of a representative Trustee  

 To consider the re-appointment of Mr. Colin Squire as a representative 
Trustee of Laleham Village Hall and Recreation Ground charity for a 
further 4-year term until July 2020. 
  

 

20.   Exempt Business  

 To move the exclusion of the Press/Public for the following item, in view 
of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the meaning of Part 
1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by 
the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the 
Local Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006. 
  

 

21.   Exempt report - To request authority to increase the Council's 
prudential borrowing limit and request a supplementary Capital 
Estimate - Key Decision 

 

 To consider a request for authority to increase the Council's prudential 
borrowing limit and request a supplementary Capital Estimate in order to 
acquire a site in the Borough. 
  
Reason for exemption 
This report contains exempt information within the meaning of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972, as amended by the 
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985 and by the Local 
Government (Access to information) (Variation) Order 2006 Paragraph 3 
– Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular 
person (including the authority holding that information) and in all the 
circumstances of the case, the public interest in maintaining the 
exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information 
because the bidding process is confidential and disclosure of the 
Council's interest, or the sums it is likely to bid, would distort fair 
competition for the site and prejudice the Council's ability to acquire the 
site in the public interest. 
  

To Follow 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
 

MINUTES OF THE SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

Minutes of the Annual Council Meeting of Spelthorne Borough Council 
held in the Council Chamber, Council Offices, Knowle Green, Staines-

upon-Thames on Thursday, 19 May 2016 at 7.30 pm 
 

Present: 
 
Councillors: 
 

M.M. Attewell 

R.O. Barratt 

I.J. Beardsmore 

S.J. Burkmar 

R. Chandler 

C.A. Davis 

S.M. Doran 

S.A. Dunn 

T.J.M. Evans 

A.E. Friday 

 

N.J. Gething 

A.L. Griffiths 

A.C. Harman 

I.T.E. Harvey 

N. Islam 

A.T. Jones 

J.G. Kavanagh 

V.J. Leighton 

M.J. Madams 

A.J. Mitchell 

 

S.C. Mooney 

D. Patel 

J.M. Pinkerton OBE 

D. Saliagopoulos 

R.W. Sider BEM 

R.A. Smith-Ainsley 

B.B. Spoor 

H.A. Thomson 

H.R.D. Williams 

 

In attendance: Murray Litvak, Chairman of Members’ Code of Conduct 
Committee 

 
Councillor M.P.C. Francis, The Mayor, in the Chair 

 

Apologies: Councillors C.B. Barnard, S. Capes, Q.R. Edgington, K. Flurry, 
P.C. Forbes-Forsyth, C.M. Frazer, O. Rybinski and J.R. Sexton 

Sue Faulkner, Vice-Chairman of the Members’ Code of Conduct Committee 
 

117/16   Election of the Mayor  
 

The retiring Mayor, Councillor Mark Francis, welcomed all members and 
guests to the Annual Meeting of the Council. He thanked the officers of the 
Council and in particular the Chief Executive, Roberto Tambini, the previous 
and current Mayor’s secretaries, Mrs Gillian Vince and Mrs Sheila Kimpton, 
for their hard work and support during his Mayoral year. 
 
Councillor Mark Francis reported on his year as Mayor and the many 
enjoyable and humorous events he had attended. He wished the new Mayor 
and Mayoress happiness and success in the coming year. Finally, he 
presented bouquets of flowers to his secretary, Mrs Sheila Kimpton, and the 
new Mayoress, Mrs Kaye Friday, as a small token of appreciation.  

Page 7

Agenda Item 2



 
Annual Council, 19 May 2016 - continued 

 

 
 

 
It was moved by Councillor T.J. Evans and seconded by Councillor I.T.E. 
Harvey and 
 
Resolved that Councillor Alfred Edgar Friday be appointed Mayor for the 
Municipal Year 2016-2017. 
 
A short adjournment took place to hand over the robes and badge of Office to 
the new Mayor during which a performance of ‘My heart is like a singing bird’ 
was sung by Grace Burgoyne, a pupil at the Brigidine School in Windsor. 
 
Councillor Alfred Edgar Friday made the Declaration of Acceptance of Office 
as Mayor of the Borough of Spelthorne and took the Chair. He thanked his 
proposer and seconder and the Council for supporting him in his election as 
Mayor. He presented Councillor Mark Francis with the past Mayor’s badge 
and a scrapbook commemorating his time in office. 
 
The outgoing Mayoress, Mrs Catherine Francis presented the Mayoress’ 
badge to the new Mayoress, Mrs Kaye Friday, and she in turn presented Mrs 
Catherine Francis with a past Mayoress badge.  
 
The Mayor paid tribute to Councillor Mark Francis for his excellent service as 
Mayor. 
 
The Mayor announced that he had appointed a Chaplain for his Mayoral Year, 
Father Andrew Downes, Vicar of St. Mary’s Church, Sunbury. 
 
The Mayor’s Charity Fund will be supporting the Parkinson’s Society, One 2 
One North West Surrey and Homestart Spelthorne. 
 

118/16   Minutes  
 

The minutes of the Council meeting held on 28 April 2016 were approved as a 
correct record. 
 

119/16   Election of the Deputy Mayor  
 

It was moved by Councillor R.W. Sider BEM and seconded by Councillor R.A. 
Smith-Ainsley and 
 
Resolved that Councillor V.J. Leighton be appointed Deputy Mayor for the 
Municipal Year 2016-2017.  
 
Councillor Vivienne Leighton made the Declaration of Acceptance of Office as 
Deputy Mayor of the Borough of Spelthorne. 
 
The Mayoress, Mrs Kaye Friday, presented the Deputy Mayor’s Consort 
Badge to the Deputy Mayor’s Consort, Mr Chris Leighton. 
 

Page 8



 
Annual Council, 19 May 2016 - continued 

 

 
 

The Deputy Mayor, Councillor Vivienne Leighton, briefly addressed the 
Council, thanking her proposer and seconder for their support. She said it was 
a great honour and she and Chris looked forward to providing support to the 
Mayor in his Mayoral year. 
 
 

120/16   Announcements from the Mayor  
 

The Mayor announced the following forthcoming events, to which all were 
invited: 

 The Armed Forces Flag Raising Day on Monday 20 June 

 The Civic Church Service on Sunday 3 July at St. Mary’s Church, 
Sunbury. 

 The Civic Day on Tuesday 6 September. 

 The Civic reception for the Business sector on Friday 11 November. 

 The Charity Ball at the Runnymede Hotel on Saturday 8 April 2017. 

 The Mayoress’ Ladies lunch at Ashford Manor Golf club on Wednesday 
26 April 2017. 

 The Civic reception for Charity giving on Friday 12 May 2017. 
 

121/16   Announcements from the Leader  
 

The Leader, Councillor I.T.E. Harvey made the following announcements: 
 
“Many things have happened since I took over as Leader in early February so 
please forgive me for taking a few minutes: 
 
Firstly congratulations to new Mayor and Deputy. Our new Mayor is partly 
responsible for my position now as Leader, having set me on the political road 
about seven years ago. 
 
Congratulations and welcome to our newest Councillor, John Boughtflower; 
also to Denise Turner Stewart for regaining her previous County seat in the 
recent by-elections. 
 
On the property front we have now completed on Harpers Hotel, giving us 
complete control over a facility to provide up to 20 units of emergency 
accommodation as well as potentially save us £130,000 pa. I was interviewed 
on BBC Radio surrey on Monday morning to discuss this. 
 
We are now progressing with plans to redevelop the Bugle pub, where 
architects have been instructed, and also Churchill Hall, to further address our 
housing deficit as well as boost our long term finances. 
 
We are also looking at and progressing other residential and investment 
opportunities. 
 

Page 9



 
Annual Council, 19 May 2016 - continued 

 

 
 

TaSF (Towards a Sustainable Future) staff restructure: We have implemented 
Stage one of the TaSF with new Group Heads appointments and are now on 
stage 2 - appointing Deputies. 
 
All councillors should now have a copy of the new committee appointments, 
which I have spent some time formulating. 
 
Our new Corporate Plan is almost completed and will shortly be presented. It 
highlights our FOUR core Priorities: 
 

 Housing 

 Economic Development 

 A Clean and Safe environment and 

 Economic Stability of the Council 
 
We have recently applied to Surrey CC for a grant to help improve secondary 
shopping areas and have this week been awarded £175,000 towards this. We 
have to match fund on a 50:50 basis. 
 
We are launching a new Economic Development Task Group to work with 
Businesses and other stakeholders to improve the economic profile of the 
Borough and this will commence meeting shortly. 
 
I have made it a principle to seek to engage constructively with opposition 
councillors where appropriate on areas of cross-party agreement and I would 
like to thank Cllr Beardsmore and Cllr Doran for their positive responses. I 
hope this will continue, for the benefit of Spelthorne residents. 
 
I wish to offer Condolences to the family of Clare Pizzingrilli, lately an 
Elections Officer, who died recently. 
 
On a happier note it is the birthday of two officers today, Happy Birthday 
Michael Graham and Greg Halliwell. 
 
Finally, I would like to thank all staff for their co-operation and hard work since 
the commencement of this administration.” 
 

122/16   Committees 2016-2017  
 

Details of the Committees and their size were circulated on the agenda for the 
meeting. The political allocation of seats was shown at agenda item 8 
(Appendix A) and the members to serve on the various Committees was laid 
round at the meeting as Appendix B.  
 
It was moved by Councillor I.T.E. Harvey and seconded by Councillor A.C. 
Harman and 
 
 
 

Page 10



 
Annual Council, 19 May 2016 - continued 

 

 
 

Resolved that: 
a) The appointment of the Committees shown at Agenda Item 8 of the 

size indicated and with the terms of reference and functions set out in 
Part 3 of the Council’s Constitution. 

b) The allocation of seats as shown on Appendix A. 
c) The Councillors to serve on Committees as shown on Appendix B. 
d) That Mr. Murray Litvak and Miss Sue Faulkner be appointed as 

Chairman and Vice-Chairman, respectively, of the Members’ Code of 
Conduct Committee. 

 

123/16   Appointment by the Council to Outside Bodies  
 

South West Middlesex Crematorium Board 
It was moved by Councillor I.T.E. Harvey and seconded by Councillor A.C. 
Harman and 
 
Resolved that Councillor D. Patel be appointed as the Council’s 
representative on the South West Middlesex Crematorium Board. 
 
It was moved by Councillor A.C. Harman and seconded by Councillor I.T.E. 
Harvey and 
 
Resolved that Councillor M.M. Attewell be appointed as the Council’s deputy 
representative on the South West Middlesex Crematorium Board. 
 
Surrey Police and Crime Panel  
It was moved by Councillor I.T.E. Harvey and seconded by Councillor A.C. 
Harman and 
 
Resolved that Councillor A.C. Mitchell be appointed as the Council’s 
representative on the Surrey Police and Crime Panel. 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 
Allocation of Committee seats 2016-17   Appendix A 
 
 

Committee  Total number of 
seats 

 

Conservative Liberal 
Democrats 

Others   

Audit 7 

 

6 1 0 

Licensing 15 

 

12 1 2 

Planning 15 

 

12 1 2 

Scrutiny 15 

 

12 1 2 

MCC 8 

 

7 1 0 

Total 60  49 5 6 

 
 

Dated: 19 May 2016 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



  

CURRENT CABINET AND COMMITTEES MEMBERSHIP 2016-2017           Appendix B  

CABINET AUDIT 
(7 seats) 

LICENSING 
(15 seats) 

OVERVIEW AND 
SCRUTINY 

(15 seats) 

PLANNING 
(15 seats) 

MEMBERS’ CODE of 

CONDUCT 
**[10 members](8 seats) 

*STAFFING AND 
 APPEALS 
 (5 seats) 

I.T. Harvey (Leader) 
S. A. Dunn M. M. Attewell R. O. Barratt  R. O. Barratt  M. Francis  

A.C. Harman (Deputy 
Leader) 

 
T. Evans C. Barnard S. Burkmar I.J. Beardsmore  A. Griffiths   

M.M. Attewell  
Community and Wellbeing 

 
M. J. Madams  R. O. Barratt  S. Capes S. Burkmar  I.T.E. Harvey  

C. Barnard  
Corporate Management D. Patel  J. Boughtflower C.A. Davis R. Chandler  J. G. Kavanagh    

N. Gething 
Planning and Economic 

Development 
D. Saliagopoulos  R. Chandler S. Doran S. Doran  S. Mooney  

A. J. Mitchell 
Environment and Compliance 

 
H. Thomson S. M. Doran  K. Flurry M. Francis R.W. Sider BEM  

J.M. Pinkerton OBE 
Housing H. Williams  S.A. Dunn  M. Francis N. Gething B.B. Spoor  

H.R. Williams 
Finance and Customer Services  Q. Edgington A. L. Griffiths T. Harman  H. Thomson  

 
 A.T. Jones N. Islam A.T. Jones 

**2 members are non-
councillors 

 

 
 

 
V.J. Leighton  

 
J. G. Kavanagh   D. Patel  M. Litvak (Chair) 

*[Meets as and  
when required] 

 

 M. J. Madams  S.C. Mooney O. Rybinski S. Faulkner (Vice-Chair)  

  S.C. Mooney D. Patel J. Sexton    

 

 D. Saliagopoulos  O. Rybinski R.W. Sider BEM   

 

 J. Sexton R.A. Smith-Ainsley   R.A. Smith-Ainsley     

 
 R.W. Sider BEM B.B. Spoor H. A. Thomson    

 

Conservative   6 
Lib Dem 1 

Conservative   12 
Liberal Democrat 1 
Others 2 

 
Conservative   12 
Liberal Democrat 1 
Others 2 
 

 
Conservative   12 
Liberal Democrat 1 
Others 2 
 

Conservative   7 
Liberal Democrat 1 

Conservative   4 
Others 1 

 V07 20160519  

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

Council  

21 July 2016 

 

Title Members’ Allowances Scheme 2016/17 

Purpose of the report To make a decision 

Report Author Gillian Hobbs, Committee Manager  

Cabinet Member Councillor Ian Harvey  Confidential No 

Cabinet Values Accountability 

Recommendations 

 

To consider the recommendations of the Independent 
Remuneration Panel, set out in full in the attached report, and 
recommend the amended scheme to Council. 

 

 

 

1. Key issues 

1.1 The Independent Remuneration Panel met on 25 January 2016 to review the 
Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2016/17. 

1.2 It is a matter for the Council to decide the level of members’ allowances under 
the Spelthorne Members’ Allowances’ Scheme. 

1.3 The function of the Independent Remuneration Panel (the Panel) is to provide 
the Council with advice on the type of its allowances and the amounts to be 
paid. 

1.4 The statutory position is that Spelthorne Borough Council “shall have regard 
to” the advice from the Panel and the Council cannot make any changes to its 
Scheme of Members’ Allowances without first considering the Panel’s advice 
on the issues involved.  The Panel acknowledges that it is a matter for the 
Council to decide the level of Members’ Allowances. In having regard to the 
Panel’s advice, the Council is to “give proper consideration” to the Panel’s 
report. In this way, the Council can take full account of its particular 
circumstances and be directly accountable to its electorate. 

 

2. Options analysis and proposal 

2.1 The proposals recommended by the Panel are set out in detail in the attached 
report. A summary of the Panel’s recommendations can be found on pages 
17-18 of the report. 

3. Other considerations 

3.1 There are none. 

Page 17

Agenda Item 9



 
 

4. Financial implications 

4.1 The budget for Members’ Allowances for 2015/16 was £205k, (based on the 
current Cabinet of 8 members, i.e. Leader, Deputy Leader and 6 Cabinet 
members). Taking into account the proposed increases in Members’ 
Allowances recommended by the Panel, a budget of £239,905 will be 
required for 2016/17 for a proposed Cabinet of 9 members, i.e. Leader, 
Deputy Leader and 7 Cabinet members. 

5. Timetable for implementation 

5.1 Subject to approval by Council on 21 July 2016, increases in the levels of 
basic and special responsibility and other allowances will be backdated to 
take effect from 1 April 2016. 

 
Background papers: There are none. 
 
 
Appendices: 
 
Report of the Independent Remuneration Panel – April 2016 
 
 

Page 18



 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

REPORT OF THE  
 

 
INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 

 
ON 

 
THE MEMBERS’ ALLOWANCES SCHEME 2016-2017 

 

FOR 
 

SPELTHORNE BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

April 2016 

Page 19



   

 
 

CONTENTS 
 
 

Paragraph  Page 

1. INTRODUCTION 1 

3. INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 1 

6. TERMS OF REFERENCE 1 

7. PRINCIPLES UNDERPINNING OUR REVIEW 2 

9. CURRENT SCHEME 3 

14. SOURCES OF INFORMATION FOR 2016/17 3 

 CONSIDERATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS  

20. Pensions 4 

22. Basic Allowance 4 

27. Public Service Element discount 5 

30. Attendance 5 

31. Workload 6 

32. Comparison to Surrey Boroughs and Districts 6 

42. Economic Factors 7 

45. Special Responsibility Allowances 8 

79. Index Linking 13 

80. IT expenses 13 

83. Co-optees Allowances 14 

88. Dependants’ Carer’s Allowance 14 

90. Travel and Subsistence Allowance 15 

97. Approved Duties 15 

 SUMMARY OF RECOMMENDATIONS 17-18 

 
Annex 1 – Proposed Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2016/17 
 

 
19-24 

 
Annex 2 – Comparative data of basic allowance paid across the Surrey authorities 
  in 2008/09 and 2015/16 
 

 
25 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20



 

 

INTRODUCTION 
 
1. This report has been prepared in accordance with the Local Authorities (Members’ 

Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003 (“the 2003 Regulations”) as amended, 
which require all local authorities to appoint an Independent Remuneration Panel 
(‘the Panel’) to advise on the terms and conditions of their Scheme of Members’ 
Allowances (‘the Scheme’).  
 

2. The Panel acknowledges that it is a matter for the Council to decide the level of 
Members’ Allowances. The statutory position (Paragraph 19 of the 2003 Regulations) 
is that Spelthorne Borough Council “shall have regard to” the advice from the Panel 
and the Council cannot make any changes to its Scheme without first considering the 
Panel’s advice on the issues involved.  In having “regard” to the Panel’s advice, the 
Council is to “give proper consideration” to the Panel’s report. In this way, the Council 
can take full account of its particular circumstances and be directly accountable to its 
electorate. 
 

3. The function of the Panel is therefore to provide the Council with advice on the type of 
its allowances and the amounts to be paid. 
 

4. The 2003 Regulations require the authority to make copies of the Scheme available 
for inspection by members of the public at all reasonable hours and publish a notice 
in a local newspaper giving details of the Scheme and the amounts payable in 
respect of each allowance mentioned in the Scheme. 
 

INDEPENDENT REMUNERATION PANEL 
 
5. Spelthorne Borough Council appointed the following persons to comprise the Panel 

on 19 December 2013. 
 
Mr. Douglas Robertson (Chairman) 
Mr. Brian Smith  
Mr. David Wight 

 
6. The members of the Panel have between them considerable experience in local 

government both as councillor and senior officer, member of audit and remuneration 
committees, finances, private and public sector management and charity work. 

 
7. They have no connections with the Council and no current affiliation to any political 

party. 
 

8. The Panel does not receive any payment for the time or work that it expends in 
undertaking the annual review of Members’ Allowances. 
 

TERMS OF REFERENCE 
 
9. Our terms of reference are in accordance with the requirements of the 2003 

Regulations, together with “Guidance on Consolidated Regulations for Local Authority 
Allowances” (“the Guidance”) issued in 2003. We are required to make 
recommendations to the Council about the following: 

 
a) The amount of basic allowance payable to all Council members; 

Page 21



   

 
 

b) The categories of Council members who should receive a special responsibility 
allowance (SRA) and the amount of that allowance; 

c) Whether the Scheme should include an allowance for the expenses of arranging 
for the care of children and dependants, and, if so, the amount of this; 

d) The amount of travel and subsistence allowances and the approved duties in 
respect of which they can be paid;  

e) Allowances for co-optees (for example the independent members appointed by 
the Council to serve on the Council’s Members’ Code of Conduct Committee); 
and 

f) Whether adjustments to the level of allowances may be determined according to 
an index and, if so, which index and how long that index should apply, subject to 
a maximum of four years before its application is reviewed. 
 

PRINCIPLES UNDERPINNING OUR REVIEW 
 
10.  The following principles, which were established at the time of the Panel’s review in 

2000, continue to underpin this review: -  
 

(i) The basic allowance is intended to recognise the time devoted by councillors to 
their work, not just work in formal council meetings, but in the community and in 
meetings with constituents, officers and their political group, and also to cover 
incidental costs (such as the use of their homes and private telephones).   

 
(ii) Special responsibility allowances (SRAs) are used to recognise the significant 

additional responsibilities which attach to some roles, not just the extra time 
required. 

 
(iii) Members’ allowances are not intended to compensate for loss of earnings, nor 

are they to recompense for the total number of hours councillors spend on their 
duties, bearing in mind the voluntary element of service in fulfilling the role of a 
local councillor, as recognised in government guidance. Councillors are not paid 
employees of the Council and their allowances should not be treated as salary. 

(iv) The Scheme should be fair, easy to understand and straightforward to 
administer. 

 
11. Alongside the general principle that the payment of an allowance is not intended to 

compensate for loss of earnings, the Panel advocates a principle of fair remuneration 
and subscribes to the view promoted by the independent Councillors’ Commission 
which says that remuneration should not be an incentive for service as a councillor, 
nor should lack of remuneration be a barrier. The level of remuneration should be 
sufficient to allow most people to consider becoming an elected member without 
suffering unreasonable financial disadvantage and equally applies to existing 
councillors who may be deterred from fulfilling their role successfully if the 
remuneration is not sufficient.1  
 
 
 
 
       
 
1
Rodney Brooke and Declan Hall, Members’ Remuneration: Models, Issues, Incentives and Barriers. 

London: Communities and Local Government, 2007. 

Page 22



   

 
 

CURRENT SCHEME 
 
12. The last review of the Scheme took place in October 2014, when the Panel 

recommended an increase in basic allowance of £197 per year (a 5% increase in the 
basic allowance of £3938, equating to a revised figure of £4135), on the basis that it 
struck a fair balance between addressing the effect of a freeze on allowances over 
the past six years, whilst taking into account the need to consider the council’s 
financial position. 
 

13. The Panel advised in its report to the Council that the calculation used for the 
2015/16 review was indicative and not advanced as a formula for future years.  
 

14. The Council decided not to accept the findings of the review and rejected the 
increase.  
 

15. The level of all allowances for 2015/16 consequently remained frozen at the 2008 
rate. The Scheme currently provides that all councillors are entitled to a basic 
allowance of £3938 per annum. This is paid on a monthly basis. In addition, the 
Leader, one Deputy Leader, five Cabinet members, the Chairmen of Committees and 
the Opposition Group Leader each receive a special responsibility allowance for 
undertaking additional duties. 
 

16. The feedback from members (outside of the Council meeting), was that they felt 
undervalued by the Panel’s decision to link the allowance to the minimum wage. 
 

17. The Panel wishes to place on record that it regrets that some members of the Council 
may have misunderstood the Panel’s appraisal of members’ allowances last year. Its 
intention in comparing the basic allowance to a multiplier of the minimum wage was 
for the Council to be able to demonstrate to the public that the current basic 
allowance, having been frozen for 6 years, was not even up to the level of a minimum 
wage. It is not within the Panel’s remit to do a performance review of individuals or 
the Council as a whole, so its recommendation was not a reflection of any judgement 
about the value of the work undertaken by members. 

 
SOURCES OF INFORMATION FOR 2016/17 
 
18. In January 2016, the Panel met with three members of the Conservative Group and 

one from the Opposition Group to discuss their views on the Scheme for 2016/17. 
The purpose of the meeting was to exchange views and no negotiations or decisions 
were made. The Panel found the discussions useful and are grateful to these 
members for their contributions which have assisted its deliberations. 
 

19. All members were also given an opportunity to complete a questionnaire on the 
Scheme 2016/17 and 28 responses were received from councillors, which represents 
almost 72 per cent of the Council. The information obtained was very helpful to the 
Panel and was used as a significant element of the evidence upon which it has based 
this report and recommendations. Reference to the questionnaire results is made 
throughout this report with the previous year’s figures shown in brackets. 
 

20. A summary of the questionnaire responses is available on request.  
 

Page 23



   

 
 

21. The Panel has taken into account the South East Employers Members’ Allowances 
survey 2014-2015 which provided regional comparative data on allowances. 
 

22. The Panel was also provided with: 
  

 Details of Surrey Boroughs’ and Districts’ allowances for 2014/15 and 2015/16 
 

 Spelthorne Borough Council’s ranking for basic allowance against other Surrey 
Boroughs and Districts in 2008/09 and 2015/16 
 

 Details of staff pay awards since 2009. 
 

 Details of indices (Consumer Price Index and Retail Price Index) since 2009. 
 

 Details of the number of meetings held and committee attendance records for 
May to November 2015. 

 
CONSIDERATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
Pensions 
 
23. The Local Government Pension Scheme (Transitional Provisions, Savings and 

Amendment) Regulations 2014 removed access to the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) from 1 April 2014 for councillors and elected mayors in England, 
with the exception that any of those who were members of the LGPS on 31 March 
2014 would retain access to the LGPS up to the end of their current term of office 
only (May 2015 in the case of Spelthorne councillors) or to age 75 if earlier.  
 

24. Some members asked the Panel to take into account the effect on the allowance of 
the loss of pension rights as part of this review. Although it is acknowledged that the 
removal of this right will have a financial impact on those councillors who have served 
a previous term on the Council, (and consequently had the option of accruing pension 
rights), the Panel did not feel it appropriate to propose any amendment to the scheme 
specifically to compensate for this ‘loss’. The Panel has therefore made no 
recommendation in this regard other than that the Scheme be updated accordingly.2  

 
Basic allowance 
 
25. The Scheme must include provision for a basic allowance, payable at an equal flat 

rate to all councillors.3  
 

26. The basic allowance is intended to recognize the time commitment of all councillors 
including such inevitable calls on their time as attending Council and other formal 
meetings, training/briefings, civic events and political group meetings and undertaking 
general constituency work. It is also intended to cover incidental costs such as the 
use of their homes and telephones. 

 
       
 
2 

Proposed Scheme for April 2016 is attached at Annex 1 
3 

The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003: Part 2,  

   Regulation 4. (1)(a) 

Page 24



   

 
 

27. The Panel’s analysis of the questionnaire returns for the 2016/17 Scheme indicated 
that all but two of the respondents i.e. 93% (63% in 2015/16) considered that the 
basic allowance needed to be increased. Furthermore, 19 respondents, 70% (46%), 
considered themselves financially disadvantaged as a result of their role as a 
councillor. 
 

28. Furthermore, in face to face discussions, councillors advised that the majority of the 
17 councillors who were elected in May 2015 were full-time workers who found their 
role to be a drain on their time and work commitments. The Panel noted the point 
they make that the current basic allowance does not encourage new people to stand 
for election and deters some from re-standing. 
 

29. The Panel therefore believes that the correspondents have given clear, almost 
unanimous support to consideration of an increase in the basic allowance to ensure 
that no elected member suffers an unreasonable financial disadvantage as a result of 
their role serving the community. 
 

Public Service element discount 
 

30. Since 2008, a discount of 33% to reflect the voluntary public service element (PSE) of 
the councillor role has been applied when calculating the level of basic allowance. 
The Panel agrees with the principle of such a discount. 
 

31. Members were asked in the survey whether they thought the current discount of one 
third for the voluntary element of the role was about right, too high or too low. 61% 
(58%) said that the PSE was about right; 18% (21%) said the discount was too high 
and another 22% (21%) said it was too low. 

 
32. The Panel concluded that discounting a percentage of the time spent by all councillors 

on their work for the public service element was still appropriate and on the basis of 
the survey, agreed that the current discount of 33% should continue to apply. This 
percentage sits within the range of PSE discount applied to basic allowances by 
councils in the southeast.4  
 

Attendance 
 
33. The Panel was pleased to note that attendance at meetings by individual councillors 

was generally good with almost every Member absent offering an apology. Under the 
2003 Regulations, it is not permissible to pay individual (Attendance) Allowances in 
recognition of attendance at meetings.5 The attendance records are published on the 
Council’s web site.  
 
 
 

 
 
 
       
4 

Data from South East Employers, Members’ Allowances Survey 2015 (October 2015) 

 
5
 The Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003: Part 2,  

   Regulation 4. 

 

Page 25



   

 
 

Workload 
 
34. The Panel’s analysis of the survey responses on time spent on ward work and general 

council business suggested that there has been an increase in the workload of 
councillors since the basic allowance was set at its current level in 2008. 
Backbenchers’ responses suggest councillors spend on average in a range of 
between 7 and 17 hours on fulfilling their councillor duties. The overall average time 
spent on undertaking the councillor role has increased from 8 hours in 2008 to 12 
hours in 2015. 

 
Comparison to Surrey Boroughs and Districts 
 
35. We noted how Spelthorne’s current basic allowance compares to the other Surrey 

Boroughs and Districts. We find that this is the most appropriate comparator and are 
not minded to consider how Spelthorne’s allowances compare to those of County or 
Unitary authorities. 

 
 

Council 
 

 
Basic Allowance (£)  

2015-166 

 

Woking Borough Council 7115 

Reigate & Banstead Borough Council 5298 

Surrey Heath Borough Council 5042 

Guildford Borough Council 4845 

Waverley Borough Council 4573 

Elmbridge Borough Council 4395 

Mole Valley District Council 4159 

Tandridge District Council 4012 

Spelthorne Borough Council 3938 

Epsom & Ewell Borough Council 3341 

Runnymede Borough Council 2869 

Median / Mean 4395 / 4625 

 
36. The Panel is conscious of the basic allowance payments being made by other 

councils and how Spelthorne benchmarks against them: compared to the 11 Surrey 
Boroughs and Districts, Spelthorne’s position has slipped from 6th place in 2008 to 
9th place in 2015. (See Annex 2) This is mainly due to the fact that Spelthorne 
Borough councillors have chosen to freeze the basic allowance since 2009. 

 
37. Taking account of the fact that between 2009/10 and 2015/16 no increase had been 

made to members’ allowances, it is the view of the Panel that the Council should 
redress the shortfalls which have developed over the past 7 years, due to the position 
adopted by the Council in that period. 
 

38. It is never a good time for a council to increase their allowances and the Panel has a 
difficult enough task now in proposing an increase due to the effect of the standstill in 
allowance for so many years, however, further prevarication would exacerbate the 
situation making it even harder to address.  

 
       

 
6 

Most figures drawn from the South East Employers, Members’ Allowances Survey 2015 (October 2015) 

Page 26



   

 
 

39. It is therefore the Panel’s intention to systematically review the scheme of members’ 
allowances with a view to increasing the current levels. However, in light of the 
financial constraints facing the Council over the next four years, it may take some 
years to remedy the accumulated shortfall.  
 

40. The Panel is also persuaded that there is a strong case for an uplift to the basic 
allowance in 2016/17 to go some way towards ensuring that councillors serving in  
Spelthorne receive appropriate financial recognition comparable with their colleagues 
in the other Surrey authorities. 
 

41. The Panel started from the position of its recommendation last year, that the basic 
allowance be increased by 5% to £4,135. 
 

42. Having regard to inflation, the increase in workload illustrated most helpfully by the 
members interviewed, and the fact that a substantial proportion of survey 
respondents (70%), considered themselves financially disadvantaged by performing 
their duties and responsibilities as a councillor, the Panel concluded that a further 
increase of 10% was justified. 
 

43. An increase of 10% on the previously recommended amount of £4,135 gives a basic 
allowance of £4,550. Such a figure would raise Spelthorne’s remuneration level to 
around the middle of the payments made by the other Surrey authorities. 
 

44. The Panel also noted that had the basic allowance been increased year on year since 
2009 in line with the Consumer Price Index (CPI)7, it would now be at £4,605. The 
Panel feels it is worth noting that although its recommendation of £4,550 is in the 
region of the CPI increase, it is not recommending an increase in line with CPI, for the 
reasons explained in paragraph 47 below. 
  

45. In making its recommendations the Panel has sought to maintain a balance between: 
(a)  the voluntary service element of a councillor’s role 
(b)  the need for appropriate financial recognition for the time spent and  
   expenses incurred by councillors in fulfilling their roles 
(c) the need to ensure that the scheme of allowances is neither an incentive  
  nor a barrier to service as a councillor in Spelthorne 

 
Economic Factors  
 
46. The Panel has considered the financial constraints facing the Council due to the fall in 

Government Grant during the years 2016-2020 which will continue to be a pressure 
for Council finances.  

 
47. The Panel understands that any increase in the basic allowance can be problematic 

at any time, but especially so in a period of ongoing public sector austerity and pay 
restraint. Some councillors feel the basic allowance should be increased this year by 
a very significant amount, however, it is the Panel’s opinion that it is more appropriate 
to redress the shortfall over a period of years rather than in one fell swoop. In any 
case, councillors may well feel reluctant to vote for a larger increase in allowances 
due to the added pressure this will place on the Council’s budget for 2016-17.  

       
7 

Office for National Statistics, Consumer Price Indices 2009 - 2015  

CPI March 2009: 109.8, CPI October 2015: 128.4  
Calculation of effect of annual increase in basic allowance of £3938 by CPI: £3938 x 128.4/109.8 = £4605 

Page 27



   

 
 

48. Having regard to the current economic circumstances and taking account of the 
evidence received, the Panel recommends that there should be an increase in the 
annual Basic Allowance for 2016/17 of £612 per annum resulting in a flat rate 
payment to each councillor of £4,550. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the Basic Allowance payable to all members of 
Spelthorne Borough Council should be £4,550 per annum from 1 April 2016. 

 
Special Responsibility Allowances 
 
49. A special responsibility allowance (SRA) may be paid to recognize the significant 

additional responsibilities that certain roles in the Council require of councillors. The 
payments for SRAs do not have to be the same across different roles.  
 

50. The 2003 Regulations do not limit the number of SRAs which may be paid, nor do the 
Regulations prohibit the payment of more than one SRA allowance to any one 
Member. They do require that an SRA be paid to at least one councillor who is not a 
member of the controlling group of the Council.  
 

51. The current Scheme, approved by successive councils, however, states that, “No one 
member should be entitled to receive more than one special responsibility allowance 
and no more than one third of all councillors should be in receipt of special 
responsibility allowances at any given time.” 
 

52. The Panel noted guidance that supports the Regulations and which indicates that 
there are important considerations for Local Authorities in relation to SRAs. 
 

53. The guidance states that “If the majority of Members of a Council receive an SRA the 
local electorate may rightly question whether this was justified. Local Authorities will 
wish to consider very carefully the additional roles of Members and the significance of 
these roles both in terms of responsibility and real time commitment before deciding 
which will warrant the payment of the SRA.”  
 

54. The ‘one SRA only’ rule improves the transparency of the scheme of allowances. If a 
councillor is able to receive more than one SRA then the public is unable to ascertain 
the actual level of remuneration for an individual councillor from a reading of the 
Scheme of Allowances.  
 

55. Furthermore, the ‘one SRA only’ rule avoids the possible anomaly of the Leader 
receiving a lower allowance than another councillor. Where two or more allowances 
may be applicable to a councillor then the higher-valued allowance is the one 
received. The ‘one SRA only’ rule is common practice for many Councils.  
 

56. Having had regard to the guidance and the importance of maintaining a scheme that 
is transparent, the Panel is of the opinion that the two rules for SRAs currently in the 
Scheme should remain unchanged for 2016/17.  

 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that no changes be made to the Scheme of Members’ 
Allowances in relation to the rules on claiming Special Responsibility Allowances. 

 

Page 28



   

 
 

57. Under the current Scheme of allowances for Spelthorne there are 5 categories for 
special responsibility allowances which are paid to a total of 13 councillors: 
 Leader (1) 
 Deputy Leader (1) 
 Cabinet Member (6) 
 Chairman (Planning, Licensing, Audit and Overview and Scrutiny Committees) 

(4) 
 Opposition Group Leader (1) 

 
58. From the evidence gathered from both the survey responses and face to face 

interviews, all those members who currently receive an SRA felt it was on the low 
side and that some roles carried a greater workload and more responsibility.  
 

59. The Panel also bore in mind comparison data8 from 2015/16 which indicated that 
some of Spelthorne’s current SRA allowances compare favourably against Surrey 
authorities, with the Leader’s and Deputy Leader’s SRAs at present being close to 
and above, respectively, the mean figures of £9586 and £4870. 

 
Council SRA for Leader 2015/16 

£ 
SRA for Deputy Leader 

2015/16 
£ 

Surrey Heath Borough Council 13741 4511 
Waverley Borough Council 13433 9299 
Reigate & Banstead Borough Council 13152 10741 
Elmbridge Borough Council 12240 6120 
Guildford Borough Council 11236 5173 
Spelthorne Borough Council 9037 6001 
Mole Valley District Council 6597 3000 
Runnymede Borough Council 5738 1434 
Tandridge District Council 5690 1423 
Woking Borough Council 5000 1000 
Average 9586 4870 

 
60. The current payments for special responsibility allowances, frozen since 2009, are 

based on the formula adopted since 2000. Taking into account the greater number of 
days input required by different roles, SRAs were calculated by applying a multiplier 
to the time component of the formula for the basic allowance. The time component 
was not discounted to reflect the voluntary public service principle.  
 

61. The Panel looked to the guidance to consider a fresh approach for this review.9  
The guidance suggests agreeing the allowance which should be attached to the most 
time consuming post on the Council and pro-rata downwards for the other roles which 
it has agreed ought to receive an extra allowance. 
 
 
 

       
 
8    

Most figures drawn from the South East Employers, Members’ Allowances Survey 2015 (October 2015) 
9    

The former Office of Deputy Prime Minister – now the Department for Communities and Local Government   

and Inland Revenue, New Council Constitutions: Guidance on Consolidated Regulations for Local 
Authority Allowances, London: TSO, July 2003, paragraph 76. 

 

Page 29



   

 
 

62. The Panel considered the current role profiles10 in the Council’s Constitution for those 
councillors with significant additional responsibilities. We agreed that the following 
roles should continue to be awarded an SRA: 
 
 Leader 
 Deputy Leader 
 Cabinet Member 
 Chairman (Planning, Licensing, Audit and Overview and Scrutiny Committees) 
 Opposition Group Leader 

 
63. The Panel also considered a suggestion that a new special responsibility allowance 

be awarded to associate Cabinet members and listened to evidence of the proposed 
role profile for these members who would shadow the portfolio holders with some 
responsibility in the role but no voting powers. The Panel concluded that as the role 
was non-voting, it did not carry a significant level of additional responsibility, as 
defined by the Regulations11, but was more of a developmental opportunity for group 
members. The Panel does not therefore propose to allocate an SRA to the role of 
associate Cabinet member. 
 

64. The Panel was advised that Spelthorne Borough Council and Surrey County Council 
are looking to set up a Joint Committee which will be chaired by a member of Surrey 
County Council with a Spelthorne Borough Councillor being appointed to the position 
of vice-chairman. On the basis that the terms of reference for the Spelthorne Joint 
Committee are likely to be similar to those for the Woking Joint Committee, the Panel 
looked at whether there was a significant additional responsibility attached to the role 
of vice-chairman of this new committee. The opinion of the Panel is that following 
Spelthorne’s practice of not paying an SRA to a vice-chairman, the responsibilities for 
this vice-chairman would not be significantly different to that of a vice-chairman of any 
of the Council’s other committees.  
 

65. The Panel does not therefore recommend any new special responsibility allowances 
for inclusion in the Scheme for 2016/17. 
 

66. Having established the roles to which a special responsibility allowance would be 
attached, the Panel then agreed that the role of Leader of the Council carried the 
most significant additional responsibilities and was the most time consuming and 
therefore should be the starting point from which to establish the level of SRAs for the 
other roles as proposed above. 
 

67. Other SRAs (with the exception of that for the Opposition Group Leader) are then 
valued downwards as a percentage of the Leader’s allowance. This approach has the 
advantage that when future adjustments to the SRAs are required, changing the 
Leader’s SRA will have a proportionate and easily calculable effect on the other 
SRAs. 
 

68. In making its recommendations, the Panel wishes to emphasise that they should not 
be interpreted as a reflection on any individual councillor’s performance in the role. 

 
       
10  Part 3f of the Council’s Constitution, as amended for consideration at Council in April 2016.  
11  

Local Authorities (Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003, regulation 5. (1)(i) and Guidance on 

Consolidated Regulations for Local Authority Allowances,  paragraph 73. 

Page 30



   

 
 

The Leader 
 
69. The Leader is ultimately responsible for the discharge of all executive functions of the 

Council. The Leader is the principal policy maker and has the personal authority to 
determine delegated powers to the rest of the Cabinet. The Leader is also 
responsible for the appointment (and dismissal) of members of the Cabinet and their 
respective areas of responsibility. 

 
70. The multiplier that the Panel applied to calculate the Leader’s SRA is 200%, or twice 

the basic allowance. If the recommended proposal of a basic allowance at £4,550 is 
adopted, this results in a Leader’s allowance of £9,100. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the Leader receive a Special Responsibility 
Allowance of 200% of the basic allowance, £9,100 per annum. 
 

Deputy Leader 
 
71. The Deputy Leader usually acts on the Leader’s behalf in their absence. From the 

evidence the Panel considers that this additional responsibility should be reflected in 
the level of allowance. Therefore the Deputy Leader’s SRA is recommended to be set 
at 66% or two thirds of the Leader’s SRA. If the Panel’s recommendations on the 
basic allowance and the Leader’s SRA are adopted, this results in an allowance 
rounded to £6,060. 
 

72. The Panel considers that in most circumstances there will only be one Deputy Leader 
and it is not minded to recommend an allowance to be paid to two councillors 
appointed to this role, as this would change the role profile and consequently the level 
of allowance. The Panel is of the view that should the Council be in a position where 
two councillors were appointed to the role of Deputy Leader, that the total allowance 
allocated to the Leader and the Deputy Leader, be pooled and distributed between 
the three councillors appointed to these two roles. In this way, the Council will have 
more control over the budget for Members’ Allowances in any one year. The Panel 
does not intend to make a recommendation with regards to the scenario described 
herein but leaves it as a matter for the Council to consider. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the Deputy Leader receive a Special Responsibility 
Allowance of 66% of the Leader’s Allowance, £6,060 per annum. 

 
Cabinet Members 
 
73. From the evidence gathered, including the survey responses, face to face interviews 

and the Council’s role profiles, it is clear that the Cabinet members hold considerable 
responsibility for their respective portfolios. In addition, we found the time 
commitment for the role to be significant. For these reasons we considered that the 
members of the Cabinet should receive an allowance of 50%, or half the Leader’s 
Allowance, which equates to £4550. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the Cabinet members receive a Special 
Responsibility Allowance of 50% of the Leader’s Allowance, £4,550 per annum. 

Page 31



   

 
 

Chairmen of committees 
 
74. In considering the SRAs to be paid to Chairmen of Committees, the Panel had regard 

to the numbers of meetings scheduled in the Council’s calendar, ad-hoc meetings 
held in the last year and additional meetings specifically for the chairmen. It also had 
regard to the Council’s role profiles and the differing levels of responsibility for 
chairing public meetings.  
 

75. From the evidence provided by the survey responses and face to face interviews, the 
Panel found that the additional time commitment for the role of Chairman is significant 
but varies in quantity according to the Committee. The Panel is persuaded that the 
Chairman of Planning Committee is a more demanding role than the other 
chairmanships, due to the numbers of meetings held, the open forum nature of the 
meeting, the amount of knowledge of policy and legislation required of the role and 
the need to be fully appraised of the applications coming before committee each 
month by undertaking site visits.  
 

76. Having regard to all these points, the Panel considers that the Chairman of Planning 
Committee should receive an allowance of 40% of the Leader’s Allowance, rounded 
to the nearest hundred, which is £3,600. 
 

77. The Panel then looked at the chairmanships of Licensing and Overview and Scrutiny 
Committees. It found that although Licensing Committee does not hold many full 
committee meetings, it has historically been busy with ad hoc sub-committees. 
However, the evidence is that these have become less frequent over the past year. 
The role however does deal with complex legal matters and has responsibility for 
managing hearings in which the public are involved in the discussions. 
 

78. Overview and Scrutiny Committees do not have formal decision-making powers; this 
committee cannot take actions to commit the Council. The Panel considered the role 
profile and terms of reference for this committee: the primary role for the committee 
would appear to be monitoring the Council’s Cabinet and holding it to account. It also 
reviews policies and services and can make recommendations for improvement. 
There are less meetings of this Committee in the Council’s yearly calendar, but it was 
evident from face to face interviews that the amount of paperwork across diverse 
topics for the Chairman to digest, is onerous. 
 

79. Having regard to the evidence gathered, the Panel considers that the Chairmen of 
Licensing and Overview and Scrutiny Committees should each receive an allowance 
of 35% of the Leader’s Allowance, rounded to the nearest hundred, which is £3,200. 
 

80. Finally, the Panel considered the role of the Audit Committee Chairman. From the 
information gathered about the lesser frequency with which this committee meets, 
and including the complexity of the remit, it finds that this role warrants an allowance 
of 25% of the Leader’s Allowance, rounded to the nearest hundred, which is £2,300. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 32



   

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the Chairmen of Committees receive a Special 
Responsibility Allowance according to the Committee: 
 
Planning Committee - £3,600 = 40% of the Leader’s Allowance 
 
Licensing Committee - £3,200 = 35% of the Leader’s Allowance 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee – £3,200 = 35% of the Leader’s Allowance 
 

 Audit Committee - £2,300 = 25% of the Leader’s Allowance 
 

Opposition Group Leader 
 

81. The Panel considered the level of SRA paid to the Opposition Group Leader. It 
recognises that the 2003 Regulations effectively require the Council to pay an SRA to 
the Opposition Group Leader. The Panel does not consider that the Opposition Group 
Leader’s remuneration should be linked to the Leader’s Allowance in the same way 
as the other SRAs. From the information gathered during our investigation, an 
allowance of £3,100 is recommended.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the Opposition Group Leader receive a Special 
Responsibility Allowance of £3,100.  

 

Index linking 
 
82. A scheme of allowances may make provision for an annual adjustment of allowances 

in line with a specified index. The Panel considered whether to recommend such an 
index to the Basic Allowance and the Special Responsibility Allowances. In view of 
the Panel’s stated intention12 to systematically review the Scheme with a view to 
increasing the allowances over the coming years, it would not be appropriate to 
propose an index link.   
 

IT allowance 
 
83. Since 2011 the Council has not provided computer equipment to members and 

instead pays councillors a separate taxable allowance (which is not part of the 
Scheme) which they can spend as they wish on computer equipment and 
accessories.  
 

84. The Panel has considered councillors’ comments that the IT provision is inadequate 
to support their role. It noted that some councils include provision for IT within their 
basic allowance. However, that is not the case at Spelthorne at the current time and 
the Panel has not seen any evidence to recommend this change. The current 
disbursement has been paid for a four year term until 2019, with many members 
taking it as a lump sum in May 2015.  

 
 
       
     
12 Paragraph 39. of this report 

Page 33



   

 
 

85. The Council may wish to consider whether it would want to see the IT expenses 
brought into the scope of the basic allowance in future years, and to make such a 
recommendation to the Panel for its consideration at the 2018 review. 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel makes no recommendation relating to the current IT expenses, but 
gives Council the option of recommending that the Panel consider subsuming 
the IT expense into the basic allowance at the 2018 review of the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme. 

  
OTHER ALLOWANCES 
 
Co-Optees Allowance 
 
86. The current Scheme pays an allowance of £1000 and £500 to the Chairman and 

Vice-Chairman respectively of the Members’ Code of Conduct Committee, both of 
whom are co-opted members. 
 

87. As per all the allowances in the Scheme, these rates have been frozen since 2009. 
 

88. The work of this Committee is mainly ad-hoc in that the main Committee only meets 
two or three times a year but Assessment and Hearings Panels convened to consider 
complaints against councillors under the Code of Conduct (and Chaired by one of the 
co-opted members) meet as and when required. 
 

89. There have been no meetings of the aforementioned Panels in the past year, but in 
previous years their work has been more onerous. 

 
90. The Panel does not propose to make any changes to the existing arrangements for 

allowances paid to co-optees. 
  

 RECOMMENDATION 
 The Panel recommends that the co-optees on the Members’ Code of Conduct 

Committee continue to receive an allowance of £1000 and £500 for the 
Chairman and Vice-Chairman respectively. 

 
Dependants’ Carer’s allowance 
 
91. The Panel noted that the current Scheme for Dependants’ Carer’s allowance (DCA) 

provides that members are simply reimbursed the actual costs incurred for 
expenditure in relation to the care of dependent relatives or children while they are 
undertaking approved Council duties, subject to submission of receipts/invoices in 
support of claims. We were advised that no claims had been made for this allowance 
for at least the last four years. 

 
92. The Panel had regard to the lack of claimants for DCA and did not receive any 

representations from members for the current Scheme to be revised. 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel therefore recommends that no change be made to the current 
scheme for Dependants’ Carer’s allowances. 

 

Page 34



   

 
 

Travel and subsistence allowance 
 

93. The Panel considered the current payments for travel allowances which were payable 
at the same rate as for Council officers on a sliding scale dependent on engine size 
for car use, and for motorcycles, for journeys undertaken in relation to approved 
duties.  

94. The current payments for cars, per mile, is: 
  

 
2015/16 

up to 999cc 46.9p 

1000cc - 1199cc 52.2p 

1200cc and over 65p 

 
95. The current payment for motorcycles is 24p per mile. 

 
96. There is currently no allowance for use of cycles. 

 
97. Across Surrey authorities, the majority who responded to the 2015 South East 

Employers survey paid the HMRC rate of 45p per mile for car use. The majority also 
paid a rate of between 20p and 24p per mile for cycle use. 
 

98. The Panel gave consideration to the rates paid in other Surrey authorities and agreed 
to introduce a rate applicable to journeys made by cycle of 20p per mile. 
 

99. The Panel also noted that the Scheme provides for reimbursement of subsistence 
expenses actually incurred in carrying out the Member's approved duties, subject to 
submission of receipts/invoices in support of claims, but that no such claims had been 
made during the past year.  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends that the current arrangements for payment of travel 
and subsistence allowances be retained as at present but with the introduction 
of a cycle allowance of 20p per mile. 
 

Approved Duties 
 
100. The Panel undertook a review of the list of Approved Duties as part of the 2015/16 

review of Members Allowances. The survey conducted last year indicated there was 
no general support for changes to the list of Approved Duties. 
 

101. The Panel was not minded to make changes to the Approved Duties in 2015/16 
Scheme other than to clarify the types of meetings which were not approved duties 
under the scheme. As the Council rejected the Panel’s recommendations for 2015, 
the minor clarification to the list of Approved Duties has not yet been approved.  
 

102. The Panel had regard to the responses to the Member Survey for 2016/17 in which 
66.67% (58%) re-iterated last year’s feedback that the current list of approved duties 
was ‘about right’. 

 
 

 

Page 35



   

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
The Panel recommends for approval the minor clarification made to the original 
list of Approved Duties which was put before the Council in 2015/1613. 

 
 
 
 
 

       
 
13

 Proposed Scheme and List of Approved Duties shown at Annex 1 

Page 36



 

 

SUMMARY OF PANEL’S RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Panel makes the following recommendations to the Council on the Members’ 
Allowances Scheme for 2016-2017: 
 

Allowance 
Current amount 

for 2015/16 
Number 

Recommended 
Allowance for 

2016/17 

Recommended 
Allowance 
Calculation 

 
Basic (BA): 

£3938 39 £4550 - 

 
 

    

 
Special 

Responsibility: 
    

 
Leader of the 

Council 
 

£9037 1 £9100 200% of BA 

Deputy Leader 
 

£6001 1 £6060 
66% of 

Leader’s 
Allowance 

Cabinet Members 
 

£3012 61 £4550 
50% of 

Leader’s 
Allowance 

Planning Committee 
Chairman 

 
£3012 1 £3600 

40% of 
Leader’s 

Allowance 

Licensing Committee 
Chairman 

 
£3012 1 £3200 

35% of 
Leader’s 

Allowance 

Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 

Chairman 
 

£3012 1 £3200 
35% of 

Leader’s 
Allowance 

Audit 
Committee Chairman 

 
£3012 1 £2500 

25% of 
Leader’s 

Allowance 

     

Opposition Group 
Leader 

 
£3012 1 £3100 - 

     

 
Co-Optees’ 
Allowance 

£1000 (Chair) 
£500 (Vice-Chair) 

1 
1 

£1000 (Chair) 
£500 (Vice-

Chair) 
- 

 
      
1 

Based
 
on the existing Cabinet and excluding the Leader and Deputy Leader 

 
 
 

Page 37



   

 
 

Allowance for expenditure 
incurred in relation to 

Approved Duties (Schedule 
1 to Scheme) 

Current amount for 2015/16 
Recommended 
Allowance for 

2016/17 

 
Dependants’ Carer’s 

Allowance 
 

Reimbursement of actual costs 
incurred 

unchanged 

 
 

  

Travelling and Subsistence 
Allowances 

  

Motor Mileage Allowance 
(per mile) 

 
Cars 

 
 
 

Motorcycles 
 

Cycle 
 

 
 
 

Up to 999cc – 46.9p 
1000cc – 1199cc – 52.2p 
1200cc and over – 65p 

 
24p 

 
Nil 

 
 
 

unchanged 
 
 
 

unchanged 
 

20p 
 

 
Day Subsistence Allowance 

 
 

Reimbursement of actual costs 
incurred 

unchanged 

 
 
Other Recommendations in relation to the Members’ Allowances Scheme 2016/17 

 

Page 
8 

The Panel recommends that no changes be made to the Scheme of 
Members’ Allowances in relation to the rules on claiming Special 
Responsibility Allowances. 
 

Page 
13 

The Panel makes no recommendation relating to the current IT 
allowance, but gives Council the option of recommending that the 
Panel consider subsuming the IT allowance into the basic allowance at 
the 2018 review of the Members’ Allowances Scheme. 
 

Page 
15 

The Panel recommends for approval the minor clarification made to the 
original list of Approved Duties which was put before the Council in 
2015/16. 

 
Douglas Robertson (Chairman) 
Brian Smith 
David Wight 
 
4 April 2016 

Page 38



 

Report from the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet 
 

Meeting held on 22 June 2016 
 

 
This is my report as the Leader of the Council on the work of the Cabinet. It is an overview 
of the main business considered by the Cabinet at its meeting on 22 June 2016.  
 
1. Landlord Rent Guarantee Scheme 
1.1 Cabinet considered a report on a Landlord Rent Guarantee Scheme. 
 
1.2 Resolved that Cabinet agreed the proposed Landlord Rent Guarantee scheme 

which is designed to encourage landlords to rent their accommodation to clients in 
housing need and address the increase in numbers awaiting suitable housing in the 
borough. 

 
2. Treasury Management Strategy - Annual report 
2.1 Cabinet considered a report on the Treasury Management for 2015-16. 
 
2.2 Resolved that Cabinet notes the report. 
 
3. 2015/16 Provisional Capital Outturn Report 
3.1 Cabinet considered a report on the provisional capital outturn spend for 2015-16. 
 
3.2 Resolved that Cabinet notes the contents of the report. 
 
4. 2015/16 Provisional Revenue Outturn Report 
4.1 Cabinet considered a report on the provisional revenue outturn for 2015-16. 

 
4.2 Resolved that Cabinet notes the contents of the report. 
 
5. Business Improvement District (BID) 
5.1 Cabinet considered a report on a retail and office Business Improvement District 

(BID) within Staines-upon-Thames.   
 

5.2 Resolved that Cabinet support an amendment to the use of the funding previously 
agreed by Cabinet, from a ‘retail only’ Business Improvement District (BID), to a 
‘retail and office’ BID within Staines-upon-Thames. 
 

6. Caravan Site Licence Fees Policy 
Cabinet considered a report on the updated Caravan Site Licence Fees Policy. 
 

6.1 Resolved that Cabinet: 

 approves the ‘Caravan Site Licensing Fee Policy’ for Spelthorne attached 
in Appendix 2. 

 approves delegated authority to the Deputy Chief Executive to approve any 
future minor amendments to the Caravan Site Licence Fees Policy. 

Page 39

Agenda Item 11a



 
7. Outside Bodies Appointments 
7.1 Cabinet considered a report on the proposed appointments of representatives to 

Outside Bodies, Surrey County Council Spelthorne Local Committee and Working 
Groups 2016-17. 
 

7.2 RESOLVED that Cabinet appoints representatives to Outside Bodies, Surrey 
County Council Spelthorne Local Committee and Working Groups 2016-17 as 
shown in Appendix A of the report. 

 
 
 

Councillor Ian Harvey  

Leader of the Council       31 July 2016 

Page 40



Report of the Chairman on the Work of the Audit Committee 
 

The Audit Committee held a meeting on 7 July 2016 and considered the following 
items of business. 
 
 
1. Corporate Risk Management  

The Committee noted and accepted the quarterly update on the Corporate Risk 
Register and recommended it to Cabinet for approval.  
 
2. Internal Audit Annual Report 

The Committee noted the Internal Audit Annual Report 2015/2016 which 
demonstrated how the authority fulfilled its statutory requirements to ‘maintain an 
adequate and effective system of internal audit of its accounting records and of its 
system of internal control in accordance with proper internal audit practices.’ 
 
3. Committee Work Programme 2016-2017 

The Committee approved its Work Programme for the 2016-2017 Municipal year.  
 
 
Councillor Mary Madams 
Chairman of the Audit Committee      21 July 2016 
 

Page 41

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank



Report of the Chairman on the work of the Licensing 
Committee 

 
There have been four Licensing Sub-Committee meetings since my last report. 
Details of those meetings are set out below. 

 
 

1. Licensing Sub-Committee – 29 April 2016 
A Licensing Sub-Committee considered a report to determine whether or not 
Mr T. Lowe was a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage driver 
licence. The Sub-Committee resolved to refuse to grant the application for a 
Hackney Carriage licence for the reasons set out in the decision notice. 
 
2. Licensing Sub-Committee – 16 May 2016 
A Licensing Sub-Committee considered a report to determine whether or not 
Mr M.S. Kapur was a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage driver 
licence. The Sub-Committee resolved to grant the application for a Hackney 
Carriage licence for the reasons set out in the decision notice. 
 
3. Licensing Sub-Committee – 24 May 2016 
A Licensing Sub-Committee considered a report on an application to vary the 
Premises Licence at The Phoenix, 26-28 Thames Street, Sunbury-on-Thames. 
The Sub-Committee resolved to grant the licence subject to modification to the 
licensable hours for sale of alcohol from the outside bar and addition of 
conditions. 
 
4. Licensing Sub-Committee – 8 July 2016 
A Licensing Sub-Committee considered a report to determine whether or not 
Mr A. Jamali was a fit and proper person to hold a Hackney Carriage driver 
licence. The Sub-Committee resolved to refuse to grant the application for a 
Hackney Carriage licence for the reasons set out in the decision notice. 
 

 
Councillor Robin Sider 
Chairman of the Licensing Committee    21 July 2016 

Page 43

Agenda Item 13



This page is intentionally left blank



    
 

Report of the Chairman on the work of the Planning Committee 
 
1. The Planning Committee has met on three occasions since the previous report 

was prepared for the Council meeting.  This report therefore gives an overview 
of the key items considered by the Committee at its meetings on 4 May, 1 June 
and 29 June 2016. 

 
 
Planning Committee – 4 May 2016 

 
2. The May meeting dealt with one planning application.  Public speaking took 

place on this item with two people the opportunity to address the Committee.  
The Councillor that called in the application spoke on the reasons for the call 
in.  The item considered by the Committee is set out below. 
 

3. This one item related to land to the east of Churchill Way Sunbury on Thames 
(14/02213/FUL).  The application proposed the erection of three no. two 
bedroom properties with associated gardens, parking and landscaping following 
demolition of existing garages on site.  The proposal was an amended 
application following refusal of 14/00156/FUL.  The Planning Committee 
resolved to approve the application. 

 
 

Planning Committee – I June 2016 
 

4. At the Planning Committee meeting on 1 June 2016, a total of five applications 
were considered with five people taking the opportunity to address the 
Committee.  The Councillor that called in the fourth application, 16/00560/FUL, 
spoke on the reasons for the call in.  The key items considered by the 
Committee are set out below. 

 
5. The first item, 16/00179/RMA, concerned the former Majestic House, High 

Street, Staines-upon-Thames.  This was a Reserved Matters application (in 
respect of appearance, landscaping, layout and scale) pursuant to outline 
planning permission granted under 09/00566/OUT and as amended under 
15/00738/RVC, 15/00739/RVC, 15/00753/RVC, 15/00754/RVC, 15/00755/RVC 
and 15/00756/RVC for the development of the site to provide up to 39,750sqm 
of floor space to comprise residential (Class C3), office (Class B1a), Class C1, 
Class D2, Class A1, Class A2, Class A3, Class A4 and Class A5 as well as the 
provision of a new link road and pedestrian routes, car and cycle parking, 
highways and transport facilities, public open space, landscaping  and other 
associated works. The Planning Committee resolved to approve the proposals. 

 
6. The next item, 16/00196/FUL, related to 16/00196/FUL land at the rear of 

Imtech House, 33 - 35 Woodthorpe Road and part of 37 Woodthorpe Road, 
Ashford.  The application proposed the demolition of the existing commercial 
buildings and erection of a part 3-storey, part 4-storey residential development 
comprising 26 flats (7 no. 1-bed, 17 no. 2-bed and 2 no. 3-bed) together with 
associated parking and amenity space.  Also proposed was the reconfiguration 

Page 45

Agenda Item 15



    
 

of the existing office car park and the installation of car stackers.  The Planning 
Committee approved the application. 

 
7. The next planning application, 15/01603/FUL concerned 111 High Street 

Staines-upon-Thames and proposed the erection of extensions to form a three 
storey building providing 5 no. two bed and 4 no. one bed flats above the 
existing shops.  The application was approved. 

 
8. The next application related to land to the west of 26 and 28 Peregrine Road 

and 181 Nursery Road (formerly 187 Nursery Road) Sunbury (16/00560/FUL).  
The application proposed the erection of a detached two storey building for the 
purposes of special needs housing (use class C2) together with associated 
entrance gates, access, parking and landscaping and was approved by the 
Planning Committee. 

 
9. The last item on the agenda, 16/00616/SCC, concerned the Waste Transfer 

Station, Charlton Lane, Shepperton.  This was a Surrey County Council 
consultation for the access, loading and exit of vehicles with waste for export 
from the existing recyclable bulking facility between hours of 6pm and 8pm 
Monday to Saturday until 31 December 2017.  The Planning Committee raised 
no objection to the proposals subject to the County Council imposing two 
conditions to restrict the operation of the development. 

 
 

Planning Committee – 29 June 2016 
 

10. At the Planning Committee meeting on 6 April 2016, a total of two applications 
were considered with two people taking the opportunity to address the 
Committee.  The Councillor that called in the first application, 16/00561/HOU, 
spoke on the reasons for the call in.  The key items considered by the 
Committee are set out below. 
 

11. The first item (16/00561/HOU), related to 50 Squires Bridge Road, Shepperton 
and proposed the erection of a first floor rear extension with a balcony and a 
single storey rear extension.  The Planning Committee approved the 
application. 

 
12. The second (and last) item, 16/00662/SCC, concerned the Recycling Facility at 

Shepperton Quarry, Littleton Lane, Shepperton.  This was a consultation by 
Surrey County Council as the determining authority for an application by Brett 
Aggregates Ltd for the continued use of land as a temporary recycling facility 
for construction and demolition waste using crushing and screening plant to 
produce recycled soils and aggregates, stockpiling of waste and recycled 
products, retention of screen bunding and two storey site office, until 21 May 
2017 without compliance with Conditions 2 and 8 of planning permission ref: 
SP14/0835 dated 24 September 2014.  The Planning Committee resolved to 
raise no objection subject to two conditions. 

Councillor Richard Smith-Ainsley 

Chairman of Planning Committee             21 July 2016 

Page 46


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	Appendix A - Allocation of Committee seats
	Appendix B - Committees' membership 16-17

	9 Members' Allowances Scheme 2016-17
	Report of Independent Remuneration Panel

	11a Cabinet - 22 June 2016
	12 Report from the Chairman of the Audit Committee
	13 Report from the Chairman of the Licensing Committee
	15 Report from the Chairman of the Planning Committee

